
 

                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 1, 2011    Page 1 of 3 
 

 
P.O. BOX 675 ▪ 61750 CHOLLITA ROAD ▪ JOSHUA TREE ▪ CALIFORNIA 92252 

TELEPHONE (760) 366-8438    FAX (760) 366-9528    E-MAIL  jbwd@jbwd.com 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY JUNE 1, 2011  7:00 PM 

61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CA  92252 
 

AGENDA 
 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the Board’s 

jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone. The Board 

may not discuss at length or take action on items not on the agenda.  
 

 

Pg 1-3 

Pg 4 

Pg 5-37 

Pg 38-40 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Approve the Minutes of the May 4, 2011 Regular Meeting 

B. Approve the Minutes of the May 18, 2011 Regular Meeting  

C. Approve the Financial Report for April 2011 

D. Billing Rate for Attorney Services for Liebert Cassidy Whitmore: Recommend that the 

Board authorize increases from $260 per hour to $300 for Partners, $235/hour to $260 

for Of Counsel, $210/hour to $245 for Associates, and $95/hour to $140 for Paralegals. 
 

Pg 41 7. PROCLAMATION IN HONOR OF THE 75
TH

 ANNIVERSARY OF JOSHUA TREE 

NATIONAL PARK  

Recommend that the Board approve the proclamation. 
 

Pg 42-73 8. WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT (WSA) FOR CASCADE SOLAR PROJECT  

Recommend  the Board approve the WSA for the Cascade Solar Project finding that there is 

sufficient water supply for the anticipated 30 acre-feet of water required during construction 

and two acre-feet required annually over the next 25 year planning horizon (the amount used 

by four to six homes).  

 

mailto:jbwd@jbwd.com


 

                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 1, 2011    Page 2 of 3 
 

Pg 74-78 9. EQUIPMENT FOR CALIFORNIA IRRIGATION MANAGEMENT INFORMATION 

(CIMIS) STATION 

Recommend that the Board approve the purchase of CIMIS equipment from Campbell 

Scientific, Inc. at a cost of $6,300, to be reimbursed by Alliance of Water Awareness and 

Conservation (AWAC). 
 

Pg 79-81 10. BILLING STATEMENT FORMAT 

Recommend that the Board review the proposed format and provide any comments. 
 

Pg 82-89 11. APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH MESSNER & HADLEY TO PERFORM 10/11 AUDIT 

AT A PRICE OF $23,582 (NO INCREASE FOR THREE YEARS) 

Recommend that the Board authorize agreement with Messner & Hadley at a cost of 

$23,582. 
 

Pg 90-101 12. BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO AUTHORIZE UPDATED FEE STUDY AT A COST OF 

$12,000, PLUS DIRECT EXPENSES ESTIMATED AT $1,500, PLUS JBWD 10% 

CONTINGENCY OF $1,200 FOR A TOTAL NOT TO EXCEED $14,700 

Recommend that the Board receive the information, evaluate and determine one of the 

following; 1) Authorize Bartle Wells Associates to conduct a fee study at a cost not to 

exceed $14,700, including 10% contingency; 2) authorize Bartle Wells Associates to conduct 

a rate and fee study at a cost not to exceed $34,500, including 10% contingency; 3) updated 

rate and fee studies not needed at this time. 
 

Pg 102-107 13. REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES FOR GENERAL MANAGER 

Recommend that the Board accept for reimbursement the attached expenses incurred for the 

General Manager and Board President while conducting District Business for the fiscal year 

to date totaling $2,064.34. 
 

 14. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Pg 108-109 

 A.  PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach 

Consultant 

B.  AD HOC GENERAL MANAGER PERFORMANCE FACILITATED REVIEW 

PROCESS:  Vice President Reynolds and Director Long 

C.  AD HOC PIPELINE REPLACEMENT FUNDING COMMITTEE; Director Luhrs and 

Director Wilson 

D.  AD HOC MORONGO PIPELINE CAPACITY POST 2022:  Vice President Reynolds 

and Director Long: Recommend that the Board approve the following three alternative 

policy positions in determining future allocation of capacity in the Morongo Pipeline: 

1: Allocation of capacity in the Morongo Pipeline will  be based on the current 

allocation initially, but adjusted every 5 to 10 years in conjunction with the 

updating of the Urban Water Management Plan; 

2: Allocation of capacity in the pipeline will be guaranteed permanently to Morongo 

Basin agencies collectively but not allocated to individual agencies.  The 

Morongo Basin agencies would split the allocation in the future; 

3:  Future allocation of capacity will be determined by Mojave Water Agency 

(MWA) since that agency would control the allocation of “water” to the 

Morongo Basin.   
 

Pg 110-112 15. PROJECT PRIORITY LIST 
 

  

 

 

 



 

                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 1, 2011    Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 

16. 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the Board’s 

jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone.  The Board 

may not discuss at length or take action on items not on the agenda. 
 

 17. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 18. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS    

 

Pg 113 

 

 

 

 

 

Pg 114 

  Director Luhrs Reports:  

1) PAYMENTS TO GENERAL MANAGER FOR CAR ALLOWANCE IN VIOLATION 

OF DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION CODE  

Director Luhrs recommends that the Board demand restitution from the General 

Manager for all payments received for his car allowance in violation of Administration 

Code Section 4.07. 
 

2) REIMBURSEMENT TO THE GENERAL MANAGER FOR WASHINGTON D.C. 

TRIP IN VIOLATION OF DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION CODE 

Director Luhrs recommends that the Board demand restitution from the General 

Manager in the amount of $1,967.01 taken in violation of section 4.07 of the District’s 

Administration Code and a letter of reprimand be placed in his personnel file.  

 

 

 

19. CLOSED SESSION  

A.  At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session to confer with Legal Counsel on 

existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9.  (Re 

Joshua Basin Water District v. Robert Ellis, San Bernardino Superior Court - Joshua Tree 

District, Case No. CIVMS 900168). 
 

B.  At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session to confer with Legal Counsel on 

existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9.  (Re 

Joshua Basin Water District v. Ironhead LLC a California Limited Liability Company, 

Praxedes Beard and Does 1 – 10 inclusive, San Bernardino Superior Court - Joshua Tree 

District, Case No. CIVMS 1100087). 
 

 20. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
 

 21 ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

INFORMATION 

During either "Public Comment” Item, please use the podium microphone.  State your name and have your information prepared 

and be ready to provide your comments to the Board.  The District is interested and appreciates your comments.  A 3-minute 

time limit may be imposed.  Thank you. 

The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin 

Water District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related 

modification or accommodation. 

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are 

available for public inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during 

normal business hours. 

The Board of Directors reserves the right to take action on items reserved for discussion only.  

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF MAY 4, 2011                         1                                                 

 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

May 4, 2011 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

7:00 PM 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Bill Long 

Mickey Luckman 

Michael Luhrs 

Mike Reynolds 

Gary Wilson 
 

Present 

Present 

Present 

Present 

Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 

Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 

Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 

Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 10 

 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Long/Reynolds 5/0 approve the Agenda for May 4, 2011 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors  
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
MSC Long/Reynolds 5/0 to approve the Minutes of the April 20, 2011 Regular Meeting and to approve the 

Financial Report for March 2011. 
 

7. RECOGNITION OF DIRECTOR RECEIVING CERTIFICATE IN SPECIAL DISTRICTS 

ADMINISTRATION 

President Luckman reported and congratulated Vice President Reynolds for completing the Special District 

Institute Local Government Leadership and Management Program. 

8. TESTING OF BACKFLOW DEVICE AT VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS LODGE 

General Manager Joe Guzzetta reported that the District is considering performing testing of backflow devices 

as part of its cross-connection prevention program. Currently, the District notifies the customer when 

testing is needed and the customer arranges it. The District has two employees who are certified to test 

the devices, and the VFW has requested that District staff test the device at their building. This has 

presented an opportunity for the District’s certified testers to gain some experience in the field. 

MSC Long/Reynolds 5/0 to approve staff recommendation to authorize District staff to test the backflow 

device at the VFW Lodge as a training exercise and to help evaluate the backflow testing program. 
 

9. DEPOSITS REQUIRED FOR NEW ACCOUNTS AND ACCOUNTS THAT HAVE BEEN 

TURNED OFF FOR NON-PAYMENT 

GM Guzzetta reported that the Board had previously approved a credit rating system based on a “red, yellow 

and green” rating where water account applicants who had “yellow” or “red” credit scores would pay a 

$100 deposit that would be refunded after 24 or 48 months of good payment history, respectively. It 

Page 1 of 114



 

REGULAR MEETING OF MAY 4, 2011                         2                                                 

was found that the District’s cost to have two different retention periods for deposits would be 

prohibitive.  

MSC Long/Reynolds 5/0  to approve staff recommendation to revise the length of time to hold deposits based 

on “green, yellow or red” scores from a credit-rating agency and adopt Resolution 11-869. 
 

10. 2011 DRAFT URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN (UWMP) 

GM Guzzetta presented the staff report noting that the Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) must be 

adopted before June 30, 2011.  Director Luhrs questioned the timing of the report stating that two 

months was insufficient time to review the report.  He asked why the Citizens Advisory Committee 

(CAC) had received some of the chapters in advance of the Board.  GM Guzzetta responded that the 

CAC had originally been appointed to serve as “stakeholders” to review the plan as required by state 

guidelines.  The Board receives CAC agendas, and staff will assure that the Board receives attachments 

in the future with the CAC agendas.  Dr. Robert Ellis, member of the public, commented that he 

believed the plan should distinguish between urban and rural areas of the District. No action was taken. 
 

11. COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

A. Public Information Committee: Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 

Kathleen Radnich demonstrated new water conservation props showing the difference between low flow and 

high flow shower heads.  She discussed public information activities including docent and volunteer 

activities, emergency preparedness activities, the dig alert promotional items, water conservations tips, 

the toilet exchange program, field trips from elementary schools to the demonstration garden and the 

first anniversary of the demonstration garden with participation by several community organizations. 

She announced that may 6 is national public garden day. 
 

B. Ad Hoc General Manager Performance Facilitated Review Process: Vice President Reynolds and 

Director Long:  Vice President Reynolds stated that there was no new information to report. 
 

C. Ad Hoc Pipeline Replacement Funding Committee: Director Luhrs and Director Wilson 

Directors Luhrs and Wilson reported that they would have an item on a future agenda recommending 

replacement of about 15,000 feet of pipe that is already designed at an anticipated cost of ($150,000 to 

$200,000)   
 

D. Ad Hoc Morongo Pipeline Capacity Post 2022: Vice President Reynolds and Director Long: 

Vice President Reynolds stated that there was no new information to report. 
 

12. PROJECT PRIORITY LIST 

The General Manager had no further comments. 

13. PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 
 

14. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 

GM Guzzetta reported that the District used the Call Fire automated phone calling system to notify customers 

of the toilet exchange program and that all 300 toilets had been reserved. Director Wilson stated that he 

has five water accounts but was not authorized for toilets for each account through the toilet exchange 

program. Staff will get more information on the program. 

15. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 

Director Luhrs asked for clarification on the cost for the General Manager and Board President to travel to 

Washington DC.  
 

Page 2 of 114



 

REGULAR MEETING OF MAY 4, 2011                         3                                                 

GM Guzzetta explained that flights were changed when they were able to return early. He noted that flight 

reservations were made in their names as they cannot be made in the name of the District. GM Guzzetta 

stated he is seeking reimbursement to the District for the two unused flights and that if the District is 

not reimbursed for those he and President Luckman will pay for them. Director Luhrs stated he believes 

people are being reimbursed in violation of District policies and that in his opinion funds were used 

illegally. Director Luhrs stated that he had attempted to initiate a criminal complaint at the Sheriff’s 

office but the Sheriff decided he didn’t want to investigate it.  Director Luhrs noted that the Sheriff’s 

name is on the campaign literature. Director Luhrs stated his intention to approach the Attorney General 

with his concerns. 

Director Wilson asked if reservations had been made for the Association of California Water Agencies 

(ACWA) conference in Washington DC.  

Vice President Reynolds reported that he participated in the water agency tour of four local agencies; he also 

attended the Mojave Water Agency Board meeting where it was noted that the Morongo Basin has the 

lowest water use in their service area. 

President Luckman reported that she and the General Manager had intended to register on-site for the 

Washington DC ACWA Conference and had also arranged to meet with legislators there. She explained 

the reasons for not incurring the cost to attend the ACWA sessions. She reported attending a Special 

District Institute seminar where she learned the importance of preparing a strategic plan linked to the 

budget and to a business plan; she suggested this for the District. She reported that she will attend the 

meetings of the Joint Powers Insurance Authority and the Spring ACWA Conference in Sacramento 

next week. 
 

16 CLOSED SESSION 
 

1.  At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session to confer with Legal Counsel on existing litigation 

pursuant to subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9.  (Re Joshua Basin Water District v. Robert 

Ellis, San Bernardino Superior Court - Joshua Tree District, Case No. CIVMS 900168). 
 

2.  At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session to confer with Legal Counsel on existing litigation 

pursuant to subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9.  (Re Joshua Basin Water District v. Ironhead 

LLC a California Limited Liability Company, Praxedes Beard and Does 1 – 10 inclusive, San Bernardino 

Superior Court - Joshua Tree District, Case No. CIVMS 1100087). 
 

15. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 

District Council Gil Granito stated that a Closed Session would not be necessary. He reported that proposed 

state legislation AB34 would tax retail water agencies to provide funding for major state water projects.  

AB457 would allow unsuccessful bidders on construction projects who prevail, to be compensated for 

attorney fees in addition to the cost of bidding for which they currently can be compensated.  Both bills 

are opposed by ACWA. 
 

20. ADJOURNMENT 8:11PM 

MSC Long/Reynolds 5/0 to adjourn the May 4, 2011 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted; 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Wednesday May 18, 2011 at 7:00 pm. 

 

Page 3 of 114



 

REGULAR MEETING OF MAY 18, 2011                         1                                                 

 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

May 18, 2011 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

  7:00 PM  

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM:  Bill Long 
Mickey Luckman 
Michael Luhrs 

Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 

Absent 

Present 

Present 

Present 

              STAFF PRESENT:  Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 

Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
 

 CONSULTANTS PRESENT: 

 

Gil Granito, District Counsel 

Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

               GUESTS    8 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Director Long made a motion to approve the agenda. Director Luhrs stated Item 10 should be removed from 

the agenda and that it was in violation of the District’s Administration Code. General Manager Guzzetta 

requested District Counsel Gil Granito determine whether this was correct. Director Luhrs read from the 

Administration Code and stated that keeping Item 10 on the agenda would be a violation of the District 

Administration Code and state law. District Counsel Granito stated his opinion that keeping the item on 

the agenda constituted no conflict and that the meeting could move forward. Director Luhrs stated it 

would be subject to interpretation by legal people and that he would make a criminal complaint. District 

Counsel Granito again stated that the meeting could move forward without any changes to the agenda 

and stated that in his opinion the agenda was legally sound. 

Vice President Reynolds seconded the motion for approval of the agenda. 

MSC Long/Reynolds 2/2 (1 Absent) to approve the agenda for the May 18, 2011 Regular Meeting of the Board 

of Directors. 

   Long  Aye  

   Luckman Absent  

   Luhrs  No 

   Reynolds Aye 

   Wilson  No 
 

Some discussion ensued regarding whether or not the meeting could continue without a majority vote 

approving the agenda. Vice President Reynolds called for a five minute recess. When the Board 

reconvened, District Counsel Granito stated that it would be in the best interest of the District to call the 

meeting off. The meeting was adjourned at 7:08 pm. 

  

Respectfully submitted; 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Wednesday June 1, 2011 at 7:00 pm. 

 

Page 4 of 114



Page 5 of 114



Page 6 of 114



Page 7 of 114



Page 8 of 114



Page 9 of 114



Page 10 of 114



Page 11 of 114



Page 12 of 114



Page 13 of 114



Page 14 of 114



Page 15 of 114



Page 16 of 114



Page 17 of 114



Page 18 of 114



Page 19 of 114



Page 20 of 114



Page 21 of 114



Page 22 of 114



Page 23 of 114



Page 24 of 114



Page 25 of 114



Page 26 of 114



Page 27 of 114



Page 28 of 114



Page 29 of 114



Page 30 of 114



Page 31 of 114



Page 32 of 114



Page 33 of 114



Page 34 of 114



Page 35 of 114



Page 36 of 114



Page 37 of 114



Page 38 of 114



Page 39 of 114



Page 40 of 114



Page 41 of 114



Page 42 of 114



 
 

2775 North Ventura Road, Suite 100
Oxnard, California 93036

805-973-5700
FAX: 805-973-1440

 

FINAL  
WATER SUPPLY ASSESSMENT 

REPORT 
 

Cascade Solar Project 

13 May 2011  

 

Prepared for 

Joshua Basin Water District 
61750 Chollita Road 

Joshua Tree, CA 92252 
 

 

K/J Project No. 1189017.00 
 

Page 43 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project i 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Table of Contents 

List of Tables ................................................................................................................................. ii 

List of Appendices ......................................................................................................................... ii 

Section 1:  Purpose ...................................................................................... 1-1 

Section 2:  Findings ..................................................................................... 2-1 

Section 3:  Project Description .................................................................... 3-1 

Section 4:  Joshua Basin Water District ..................................................... 4-1 

4.1  Urban Water Management Plan .......................................................... 4-1 
4.1.1  Base Daily Per Capita Water Use for SBX7-7 Reduction ........ 4-2 

Section 5:  Historical and Projected Water Demands................................. 5-1 

Section 6:  Existing and Projected Supplies ............................................... 6-1 

6.1  Local Water Supply ............................................................................. 6-1 
6.2  Imported Water Supply ........................................................................ 6-1 

6.2.1  MWA Banked Groundwater Storage ........................................ 6-2 
6.3  Demonstrating the Availability of Sufficient Supplies and Plans 

for Acquiring Additional Supplies ......................................................... 6-2 

Section 7:  Conclusion:  Availability of Sufficient Supplies ........................ 7-1 

Section 8:  List of Abbreviations and Acronyms ......................................... 8-1 

 

Page 44 of 114



Table of Contents (cont'd) 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project ii 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

List of Tables 

3-1 Existing Land Use and Land Use Zoning Districts 

3-2 Similar Solar Projects Water Demand Comparison 

4-1 JBWD Projected Water Demands 

5-1  Past, Current, and Projected Water Use (AFY) 

7-1 JBWD Projected Average/Normal Year Supplies and Demand (AFY) 

7-2  JBWD Projected Single-Dry Year Supplies and Demand (AFY) 

7-3  JBWD Projected Multiple-Dry Year Supplies and Demand (AFY) 

 

List of Appendices 

A Cascade Solar Project Location Map 

B MWA’s SWP IDM Continued Supply Letter to JBWD 

C References 

D JBWD’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan  
 

 

Page 45 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 1-1 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Section 1: Purpose 

This Water Supply Assessment (WSA) has been prepared by the Joshua Basin Water District 
(District, JBWD) in consultation with the County of San Bernardino pursuant to Public 
Resources Code Section 21151.9, and California Water Code Sections 10631, 10657, 10910, 
10911, 10912, and 10915 referred to as SB 610.  SB 610 amended state law, effective January 
1, 2002, to improve the link between information on water supply availability and certain landuse 
decisions made by cities and counties.  SB 610 requires that the water purveyor of the public 
water system prepare a water supply assessment to be included in the environmental 
documentation of certain proposed projects.   

The County of San Bernardino requested the WSA for the project based on its size (150 acres) 
as part of the environmental documentation being prepared for the Cascade Solar Project 
(Project).  The Project description is provided in Section 3 of this WSA Report.  This WSA 
Report is intended for use by the County of San Bernardino in its evaluation of the Project under 
the environmental review process.  This WSA evaluates water supplies that are or will be 
available during normal, single-dry, and multiple-dry water years during a 25-year projection to 
meet existing demands, expected demands of the Project, and reasonably foreseeable planned 
future water demands served by the District.  

Page 46 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 2-1 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Section 2: Findings 

This WSA identifies that the water demand projections for the proposed Project have been 
included in the demand forecasts within the Urban Water Management Plans (UWMPs) and 
other planning documents of the District and the Mojave Water Agency (MWA).  Also, the water 
supplies necessary to serve all existing and future demands, including the proposed Project, 
have been identified in the same planning documents.  This WSA demonstrates that with 
development of the planned supplies identified by the District and MWA, there will be sufficient 
water supplies over a 25-year planning horizon to meet the projected demand of the proposed 
Project and the existing and other planned development projects within the District’s service 
area.   

Based on a normal water supply year as described in the District’s Draft 2010 UWMP (JBWD 
2010 UWMP), the District-estimated five‐year increments for a 25‐year projection indicate water 
supply of 1,877 acre‐feet (af) in 2015 and 2,177 af in 2035 will meet the Project projected water 
demand.  Based on dry-year forecasts, the District-estimated water supply will also meet the 
projected water demand during single and multiple-dry year scenarios.  Supply and demand 
totals for the District in a single-dry year are approximately 2,065 acre-feet per year (afy) to 
2,395 afy from 2015 to 2035, respectively.  Multiple four-year dry conditions are also met.  

These findings confirm that there is sufficient water supply to serve the proposed Project and 
the existing and other planned projects in both normal and dry year forecasts.  An adequate 
supply is further confirmed by MWA’s Draft 2010 Urban Water Management Plan (MWA 2010 
UWMP), which states that MWA has adequate supplies to meet demands during average, 
single-dry, and multiple-dry years throughout the 25-year planning period. 

  

Page 47 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 3-1 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Section 3: Project Description 

The Cascade Solar Project (Project) encompasses a total of approximately 150 acres. The 
project site is located east of Lawrence Avenue between 4th Street South and Sunflower Road 
in the Sunfair community in unincorporated San Bernardino County (County) and also within the 
Joshua Basin Water District’s (District’s) service area. The project requires a Conditional Use 
Permit to permit operation of a renewable energy generation facility and a major variance to 
waive the requirement for paving of a portion of Broadway and for dedication of land along 
Barnaby Road. 

The project site is located in the Mojave Desert region of San Bernardino County. The Mojave 
Desert comprises the County’s Desert Planning Region, which contains 93 percent of San 
Bernardino County’s land area. The County’s General Plan states that the Desert Planning 
Region consists of an assemblage of mountain ranges interspersed with long, broad valleys that 
often contain dry lakes. The project site is located approximately 4 miles northeast of the 
unincorporated community of Joshua Tree (population 5,200) and 8 miles northwest of the city 
of Twentynine Palms (population 33,600). The smaller community of Sunfair is located ½ mile 
west of the site. Appendix A includes a location map of the project. 

The project site contains nine (9) parcels that are currently vacant and covered with desert 
vegetation, primarily native grasses and shrubs.  The project site and surrounding parcels are 
located within the Joshua Tree Community Plan area. The site’s land use zoning designations 
are RC (Resource Conservation), covering 22.15 acres, and RL (Rural Living); covering 127.67 
acres (see Table 3-1). The RC zone district is intended to encourage limited rural development 
while protecting open space areas. The RL zone district encourages the development of rural, 
single-family residential uses as the primary use of land. Solar energy generation facilities are 
conditionally permitted in both the RC and RL zone districts. 

Parcels surrounding the project site to the north, south, and east are also within the RC and RL 
zone districts. To the west, the RL zone district is present in addition to the RS (Single 
Residential) zone district. The RS zone district supports residential development at a higher 
intensity than the RL zone district.  

Page 48 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 3-2 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Table 3-1 
EXISTING LAND USE AND LAND USE ZONING DISTRICTS 

Location 
Existing Land 

Use 
Land Use 

Zoning District APN Parcels 
Gross 

Acreage 

Project 
Site 

 
Vacant land 

RC (Resource 
Conservation) 

RL (Rural Living) 

0606-121-01 2.50 
0606-121-33 2.50 
0606-121-44 18.48 
0606-121-45 19.66 
0606-121-46 17.98 
0606-121-47 19.66 
0607-251-09 40.00 
0607-251-25 9.70 
0607-251-34 19.39 

Total 149.87 

North 

Low-density and rural 
residential; vacant 

lands RC, RL   

South 

Low-density and rural 
residential; vacant 

lands RL   
East Vacant lands RC, RL   

West 

Low-density and rural 
residential; vacant 
lands; Hi Desert 

Airport 
RL, RS (Single 

Residential)   
 
To calculate water demand for its service area, the District’s 2002 Water Master Plan 
establishes water duty coefficients for each pressure zone based on historical usage within 
each zone. These coefficients are then used to determine projected average day and maximum 
day demand requirements for each pressure zone based on the growth projections identified.   

Because the project site will not house any permanent employees, no onsite restroom facilities 
are proposed. Therefore, no wastewater will be produced and no septic system or other 
disposal facility will be required. 

Water will be required on the project site for occasional (approximately two times per year) 
cleaning of solar panels and will be provided by the District through an existing 6-inch water 
pipeline installed in Broadway.  

The Project was identified in JBWD’s Draft 2010 UWMP as having a water demand of 
approximately 2 afy, a very conservative estimate for operational water use, based on a 
proration of water use from similar solar power projects under development by other parties in 
San Bernardino and Kern Counties.  Table 3-2 presents a comparison of the water demands 
with the proposed Cascade Solar Project and other solar photovoltaic projects.  

Page 49 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 3-3 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

TABLE 3-2 
SIMILAR SOLAR PROJECTS WATER DEMAND COMPARISON 
Project Name Water Demand (afy) Site Acreage (acres) 

Cascade Solar (San Bernardino County) 2.0 150 
SEPV2, LLC/Solar Electric Solutions, LLC 

(San Bernardino County) 0.08  20  
Maricopa Sun Solar (Kern County) 59.0 9,027  

Lost Hills Solar (Kern County) 2.0 307  
 
At this time, water is available for the Cascade Solar Project.   

Operations 

The project facilities will be automated to allow operation without staff being present. By nature, 
solar power generation projects operate during daylight hours, 365 days per year. Staff will 
periodically visit the site to provide maintenance services and ensure proper operation. Activities 
will be monitored remotely by staff at an offsite location. Security personnel would visit the site 
several times a week. 

Washing of the solar panels, which is necessary to maintain panel efficiency, would occur 
approximately two times per year. Washing would require an increase in temporary staffing 
onsite and the use of water trucks. Trucks will obtain a supply of water from the existing 6-inch 
diameter water pipeline in Broadway. It is calculated that less than two (2) af of water would be 
required per year for the panel cleaning activities. A portion of the water used in cleaning would 
evaporate into the atmosphere; the remainder would remain on the site and percolate 
underground. No water used in panel washing would flow offsite.  The existing 6-inch diameter 
water pipeline in Broadway has adequate capacity to serve the site. 

Page 50 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 4-1 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Section 4: Joshua Basin Water District 

The project site is located within the Joshua Basin Water District (JBWD).  Water is currently 
obtained exclusively from local groundwater supplies.  

JBWD was formed as a public agency in 1963 when the District purchased and combined 
several small existing water systems. Today, the District serves more than 4,200 connections in 
a 100-square mile service area, between Yucca Valley, Twentynine Palms, Joshua Tree 
National Park and the Twentynine Palms Marine Corps Base. JBWD is one of ten retail water 
purveyors within MWA’s service area that is required to complete an UWMP. MWA is a State 
Water Project (SWP) contractor that serves an area of 4,900 square miles of the High Desert 
area. 

The JBWD service area overlies all or a portion of two groundwater basins as defined by the 
California Department of Water Resources (DWR) Bulletin 118-03 (DWR 2003). These basins - 
the Copper Mountain and the Joshua Tree Groundwater Basins - overlie a broad hydrologic 
region also defined in DWR Bulletin 118-03 as the Colorado River (Region 7) hydrologic region. 
The basins are not adjudicated; for that reason there are no deeded rights to withdraw water. 
Overall management of water resources is the responsibility of JBWD pursuant to the Joshua 
Basin Water District AB3030 Groundwater Management Plan (GWMP).1 

The District has local entitlements to SWP water supplies through cost participation with the 
MWA Morongo Basin Pipeline Project. Currently, JBWD has an agreement in place with MWA 
through which JBWD is entitled to up to 1,959 acre-feet per year (afy) of SWP water. This water 
cannot be accessed without the extension of the Morongo Pipeline and construction of recharge 
facilities that would occur under the JBWD Proposed Recharge Basin and Pipeline Project. 
SWP water that would be delivered to the JBWD through the Recharge Project would provide 
some relief of overdraft conditions2, eliminate ongoing overdraft by enabling the District to meet 
current water demands, and provide recharge water by bringing in slightly more water than the 
demand.  The Proposed Recharge Project is currently designed and waiting for grant funding so 
construction can begin. 

Data on projected population and growth rate projections within the District were obtained from 
the forecast population and demand model that MWA created and used for its 2010 Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP).  JBWD is a retail water purveyor within MWA’s service area 
and supplied MWA with the necessary data input for the model for JBWD.  Using the draft 
Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 2012 Regional Transportation Plan 
(RTP) growth forecast (baseline of 2008), it is predicted that the JBWD service area will grow at 
a rate of approximately 1.0 percent per year from 2010 through 2035. 

4.1 Urban Water Management Plan 
The Guidelines regard the UWMP as the planning document that can be used by a water 
supplier to meet the standards set forth in SB 610, and that cities, counties, water districts, 
property owners, and developers will all be able to utilize this document when planning for and 
                                                 
1 JBWD, 1996 GWMP, adopted on February 17, 1997 by Ordinance 97-1. 
2 JBWD, 2006 Groundwater Availability Evaluation, Joshua Tree, CA.  Prepared by Dudek, 2006. 

Page 51 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 4-2 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

proposing new projects.  The Guidelines further dictate that if the projected water demand 
associated with the proposed project was accounted for in the most recently adopted urban 
water management plan, the public water system may incorporate the requested information 
from the urban water management plan in preparing the elements of the assessment. 

In accordance with the California Urban Water Management Planning Act, the JBWD Board of 
Directors plan to adopt the 2010 UWMP by June 30, 2011, and it will be subsequently submitted 
to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR).  As required by law, the District’s 2010 
UWMP includes projected water supplies required to meet future demands through 2035.  In 
accordance with Water Code Section 10910 (c) (2), information from the District’s UWMP has 
been used to prepare this WSA. 

Water demands for the Proposed Project are included in the JBWD 2010 UWMP as evidenced 
by the following: 

1. The Cascade Solar Project is located within the District’s service area as described in 
the JBWD 2010 UWMP. 

2. Water uses were broken into five (5) categories, and assumptions were made about 
each to determine projections. Demand projections were based largely on population 
growth.  Past and current population data were available.  Also, the Project was 
specifically described under the Commercial/Institutional/Industrial (CII) water use 
category in the 2010 UWMP. 

3. Though the District is guided by its 2002 Master Plan to assure future reliable water 
supplies, it will be dependent on MWA for the SWP imported water to recharge the 
Joshua Tree/Copper Mountain groundwater basins. According to MWA’s 2010 UWMP, 
MWA has adequate supplies to meet demands during average, single-dry, and multiple-
dry years throughout the 25-year planning period. 

4.1.1 Base Daily Per Capita Water Use for SBX7-7 Reduction 
As described in Senate Bill 7 of Special Extended Session 7 (SBX7-7), it is the intent of the 
California legislature to increase water use efficiency and the legislature has set a goal of a 
20 percent per capita reduction in urban water use statewide by 2020.  The requirements of 
SBX7-7 apply to retail water suppliers.  Consistent with SBX7-7, the JBWD 2010 UWMP 
provided a calculation of Base Daily Per Capita Water Use.  This calculation utilized information 
on population as well as base gross water use.  For the purposes of JBWD’s 2010 UWMP, base 
gross water use is defined as the total volume of water, treated or untreated, entering the 
distribution system of JBWD, excluding: recycled water; net volume of water placed into long-
term storage; and water conveyed to another urban water supplier. The calculation of Base 
Daily Per Capita Water Use is limited to JBWD’s retail service area. The results of the Base 
Daily Per Capita Water Use calculation for JBWD proved that no further conservation is required 
to meet the SBX7-7 reductions using the demand projections already established for JBWD. 
Therefore, JBWD’s demand projections are the same with and without conservation. 

Table 4-1 summarizes JBWD’s projected water demands through 2035, with and without 
conservation using the SBX7-7 requirements discussed previously. Please note that JBWD’s 
demand projections are the same with and without conservation.   

Page 52 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 4-3 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

TABLE 4-1 
JBWD PROJECTED WATER DEMANDS 

 2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
Water Demands(a) 

(af) 1,600 1,560 1,877 1,944 2,022 2,099 2,177 
GPCD(b) 
(No Conservation) 153 140 160 156 156 156 156 

SBx7-7 Req'd 
GPCD(c) N/A 165 160 156 156 156 156 
SBx7-7 Savings(d) 

(af) N/A 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Water Demands w/ 
Conservation(e) N/A 1,560 1,877 1,944 2,022 2,099 2,177 

Source JBWD 2010 UWMP.  
Notes: 
(a) JBWD’s demand projections without conservation.  
(b) Calculated using the estimated population from JBWD 2010 UWMP Table 2-2. 
(c) See JBWD 2010 UWMP Table 2-5. 
(d) Calculated as the difference between the projected GPCD without conservation and the SBX7-7 Required GPCD 

times the population. 
(e) JBWD’s demand projections with conservation using the SBX7-7 requirements.  Please note that the demands 

are the same with and without conservation.  Also, 2010 data is actual. 

Page 53 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 5-1 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Section 5: Historical and Projected Water Demands 

Historical and projected water demands through 2035 were taken from the JBWD 2010 UWMP.  
Data on projected population and growth rate projections within the District were obtained from 
the forecast population and demand model that MWA created and used for its MWA 2010 
UWMP.  JBWD is a retail water purveyor within MWA’s service area and supplied MWA with the 
necessary data input for the model for the District.  The historical and projected potable water 
demands for the District’s service area are shown in Table 5-1.  

TABLE 5-1 
PAST, CURRENT, AND PROJECTED WATER USE (AFY)  

Water Use Sector(a) 2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
Metered Single-Family 1,184 1,213 1,512 1,552 1,613 1,673 1,733 
Metered Multi-Family 58 84 88 94 97 100 105 

Metered CII 161 244 258 278 291 304 317 
Metered Irrigation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Metered Other 0 10 10 11 12 12 12 
Unaccounted 

For/System Losses 197 9 9 9 9 10 10 
Total 1,600 1,560 1,877 1,944 2,022 2,099 2,177 

Source: JBWD 2010 UWMP, Table 2-7. JBWD’s demand projections are the same with and without conservation. 

In 2006 Mojave Water Agency (MWA) became a signatory to the Memorandum of 
Understanding Regarding Water Conservation in California (MOU) of the California Urban 
Water Conservation Council (CUWCC) and is firmly committed to the implementation of the 
Best Management Practices (BMPs) or Demand Management Measures (DMMs).  The 
CUWCC is a consensus-based partnership of agencies and organizations concerned with water 
supply and conservation of natural resources in California. By becoming a signatory, MWA 
agreed to implement a series of locally cost-effective conservation methods in the MWA service 
area through cooperation with, and participation of, the retail water purveyors.   

Those signing the CUWCC MOU have pledged to develop and implement fourteen 
comprehensive conservation BMPs.  The MOU was compiled with two primary purposes: to 
expedite implementation of reasonable water conservation measures in urban areas; and, to 
establish assumptions for use in calculating estimates of reliable future water conservation 
savings resulting from proven and reasonable conservation measures. 

The MOU and BMPs were revised by the CUWCC in 2008. The revised BMPs now contain a 
category of “Foundational BMPs” that signatories are expected to implement as a matter of their 
regular course of business.  These include Utility Operations (metering, water loss control, 
pricing, conservation coordinator, wholesale agency assistance programs, and water waste 
ordinances) and Public Education (public outreach and school education programs).  These 
revisions are reflected in the reporting database starting with reporting year 2009. 

The new category of foundational BMPs is a significant shift in the revised MOU.  For MWA and 
other wholesalers these changes do not represent a substantive shift in requirements. 

Page 54 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 5-2 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Reaffirming its commitment to conservation, in 2003 the Joshua Basin Water District, along with 
Mojave Water Agency (MWA) and other retail water purveyors in the MWA Service Area, 
formed the Alliance for Water Awareness and Conservation (AWAC).  The mission of the 
AWAC, a coalition of 25 regional organizations, is to promote the efficient use of water and 
increase communities' awareness of conservation as an important tool to help ensure an 
adequate water supply. The AWAC have developed water conservation measures that include 
public information and education programs and had set a regional water use reduction goal of 
15 percent gross per capita by 2015. 

Page 55 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 6-1 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Section 6: Existing and Projected Supplies 

The JBWD currently has two sources of local water supply – groundwater and return flow from 
the pumped groundwater not consumptively used.  The portion of the groundwater pumped that 
does not return to the aquifer is referred to as consumptive use.  In the near future, JBWD will 
add a third supply, which is the MWA supply of SWP imported water to recharge the 
groundwater basins.  

6.1 Local Water Supply 
JBWD currently obtains 100% of its water supply from the Copper Mountain and Joshua Tree 
groundwater basins. The JBWD is concerned with the long-term sustainability of the underlying 
aquifer in the Joshua Tree basin and has recently constructed production wells in the adjacent 
Copper Mountain groundwater basin to help meet future demands. 

A portion of the water pumped from the ground is returned to the groundwater aquifer and 
becomes part of the available water supply; this is defined as “return flow.”  For example, much 
of the water sent to septic systems and applied during irrigation percolates back to the 
groundwater aquifer. The portion of the pumped groundwater that does not return to the aquifer 
is referred to as “consumptive use.” 

6.2 Imported Water Supply 
Currently, JBWD has an agreement with MWA entitling JBWD with up to 1,959 afy of SWP 
water until 2022, which they cannot access without the extension of the Morongo Pipeline and 
construction of planned recharge facilities.  SWP water will be brought to the area via the 71-
mile long Morongo Basin Pipeline (MBP), which conveys SWP water from the California 
Aqueduct in the Mojave River watershed to the Hi-Desert Water District (HDWD) and JBWD 
service areas. Voters approved the financing plan for the $54 million MBP project by more than 
a two-thirds vote in June 1990.  

In 1991, when the MBP Agreement was signed by MWA and JBWD, MWA had a SWP Table A 
entitlement of 50,800 afy. JBWD was assigned 1,959 afy of this amount. The agreement 
provides that MWA may deliver additional SWP water to MBP project participants when water is 
available, subject to pipeline capacity. This may be delivered to the retail customers; however, 
there is no guaranteed contractual amount. The JBWD has a contract in place under the 
provisions of the MBP agreement for delivery until 2022.  After 2022, JBWD will rely on MWA to 
provide the necessary imported water (see Section 6.3).   

The Joshua Basin District Recharge and Pipeline Project will create a mechanism for the JBWD 
to make use of SWP water via the Morongo Basin Pipeline. The JBWD is part of Improvement 
District M and therefore is paying a share of the debt associated with the construction of the 
Morongo Pipeline facilities. The project is ready to begin construction and is expected to provide 
recharge of 1,000 afy into the Joshua Tree Basin after construction is completed by 2015 per 
the District’s 2010 UWMP.  

Page 56 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 6-2 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

6.2.1 MWA Banked Groundwater Storage 
Since 2006, MWA has created a conjunctive use program to take advantage of the fact that the 
available MWA SWP supply on average is still greater than the existing demand in the service 
area.  MWA has been able to store the water in various groundwater basins for future use when 
SWP supplies are not available or there are groundwater shortages.  

During normal and wet years, MWA delivers SWP water in excess of local demands and stores 
the surpluses as a part of the groundwater storage program.  During dry years when SWP 
supplies are not sufficient to meet demands, MWA debits from banked supplies to meet 
demands. The storage available as of January 5, 2011, in MWA’s existing banked accounts is 
103,539 af for future use.   

6.3 Demonstrating the Availability of Sufficient Supplies and 
Plans for Acquiring Additional Supplies 

The JBWD 2010 UWMP assumes MWA will continue the supply the 1,959 afy to the Morongo 
Basin Pipeline after JBWD’s existing contract with MWA expires in 2022.     

MWA and JBWD entered into the Improvement District Morongo (IDM) beyond the term of the 
IDM Participants Agreement (“IDM Agreement”) (Appendix B).  After the IDM Agreement has 
expired, MWA will allocate SWP water to meet customer demands in the IDM area in a manner 
consistent with its universally applied SWP allocation policies.  It is reasonable to assume that 
policies will be similar to the allocation methods MWA has used during the last few years (i.e. 
shortages will be shared by all MWA customers during dry periods and SWP supplies allocated 
according to customers’ proportionate share of historic deliveries). 

MWA has done extensive research and analysis in preparation of regional water demand 
projections for its MWA 2010 UWMP, and has collaborated with the Technical Advisory 
Committee (TAC) to the MWA and its participants, including participants in the IDM Agreement, 
throughout the development of the projections.  Draft regional projections indicate that total 
water supplies available to MWA, including local supplies and imported supplies from the SWP, 
will be sufficient to meet total water demands beyond 2035.   

Based upon the projections prepared for MWA’s 2010 UWMP, it is anticipated that SWP 
supplies available to MWA will be sufficient to meet customer demands for imported water 
supplies through 2035, if local groundwater storage programs are used to buffer against short-
term reductions or disruptions in supply. 

Page 57 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 7-1 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Section 7: Conclusion:  Availability of Sufficient Supplies 

The District and the MWA are implementing plans that include projects and programs to help 
ensure that the existing and planned water users within the District’s service area have an 
adequate supply.  The forecasted water demands from Table 5-1 are compared with projected 
supplies within the District’s service area in Table 7-1. This demonstrates that with 
implementation of the projects discussed in the two agencies planning documents (see 
Appendix C for References), there will be adequate water supplies to serve the proposed 
Project development and its 2 AFY of demand, along with existing and other future planned 
uses. 

TABLE 7-1 
JBWD PROJECTED AVERAGE/NORMAL YEAR SUPPLIES AND DEMAND (AFY)  

Water Supply Source 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
Existing Supplies       

Local Supplies       
Groundwater Production(a) 984 98 127 179 211 263 
Return Flow 576 604 642 668 693 719 

Total Existing Supplies 1,560 702 769 847 904 982 
Planned Supplies       

Basin Recharge Project  - 
MWA Imported(b) 0 1,175 1,175 1,175 1,195(c) 1,195 

Total Supplies 1,560 1,877 1,944 2,022 2,099 2,177 
Total Adjusted Demand(d) 1,560 1,877 1,944 2,022 2,099 2,177 
Source: JBWD 2010 UWMP, Table 6-2. 

(a) Assumes the production of groundwater will go directly to assisting overdraft correction in the groundwater basin. 
(b) Assumed to be on-line by 2015. After 2022, MWA supply assumed to be from SWP imported water. 
(c) Assumes MWA will continue supply of 1,959 afy to the Morongo Basin Pipeline. 
(d) Conservation is assumed in demands using SBX7-7. The demands are the same with and without conservation 

because no conservation is required to meet the SBX7-7 requirements. 

The normal and single dry-year scenarios with a 25-year projection are shown in Tables 7-1 and 
7-2.  Multiple dry-year scenarios for the 25-year projection are shown in Table 7-3.  These 
tables demonstrate that JBWD has adequate supplies to meet demands during average, single-
dry, and multiple-dry years throughout the 25-year planning period.  While during dry years, the 
groundwater basin will continue to be “overdrafted” to meet the supplies due to the lack of 
imported supplies being available to recharge the basin, the planned imported SWP supply will 
lessen and offset the “overdraft” as much as possible.  

An adequate supply is further confirmed in MWA’s 2010 UWMP, where it states that MWA can 
maintain reliable supplies under the conditions that have existed in past dry periods throughout 
the period 2010 through 2035.  MWA has also identified supplies, including additional banked 
SWP groundwater storage that could serve to supply any additional water needed.  

Page 58 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 7-2 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

TABLE 7-2 
JBWD PROJECTED SINGLE-DRY YEAR SUPPLIES AND DEMAND (AFY) 

Water Supply Source 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
Existing Supplies       

Local Supplies       
Groundwater Production(a) 984 1,324 1,359 1,419 1,401 1,461 
Return Flow 576 604 642 668 693 719 

Total Existing Supplies 1,560 1,928 2,001 2,087 2,094 2,180 
Planned Supplies       

Basin Recharge Project  - 
MWA Imported(b) 0 137 137 137 215(c) 215 

Total Supplies 1,560 2,065 2,138 2,224 2,309 2,395 
Total Adjusted Demand(d) 1,560 2,065 2,138 2,224 2,309 2,395 

Source: JBWD 2010 UWMP, Table 6-3. 
(a) Assumes that during dry years, less water will be recharged using MWA’s imported water to assist with overdraft 

correction in the groundwater basin and more water will be used from groundwater to supply demands as 
needed until the recharge supply is available again. 

(b) Assumes SWP supply availability rates will be 7% for MWA (as shown in Table 3-6 of JBWD’s 2010 UWMP) and 
Project to be on-line by 2015.  

(c)  Assumes SWP supply availability rates will be 11% for MWA (as shown in Table 3-6 of JBWD’s 2010 UWMP) 
and after 2022, JBWD supply assumed to be from MWA imported water supply of 1,959 afy to the Morongo 
Basin Pipeline. 

(d) Demands are assumed to increase by 10% during dry years. 2010 demands and supply are from actual data. 
The demands are the same with and without conservation because no conservation is required to meet the 
SBX7-7 requirements. 

TABLE 7-3 
JBWD PROJECTED MULTIPLE-DRY YEAR SUPPLIES AND DEMAND (AFY)  

Water Supply Source 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
Existing Supplies       

Local Supplies       
Groundwater Production(a) 984 795 830 890 930 990 
Return Flow 576 604 642 668 693 719 

Total Existing Supplies 1,560 1,399 1,472 1,558 1,623 1,709 
Planned Supplies       

Basin Recharge Project  - 
MWA Imported(b) 0 666 666 666 686(c) 686 

Total Supplies 1,560 2,065 2,138 2,224 2,309 2,395 
Total Adjusted Demand(d) 1,560 2,065 2,138 2,224 2,309 2,395 

Source: JBWD 2010 UWMP, Table 6-4. 
(a) Assumes that less water will be recharged using MWA’s imported water to assist with overdraft correction in 

the groundwater basin and more water will be used from groundwater to supply demands as needed until 
the recharge supply is available again. 

(b) Assumes SWP supply availability rates will be 34% for MWA (as shown in Table 3-6 of JBWD’s 2010 
UWMP) and Project to be on-line by 2015.  

(c) Assumes SWP supply availability rates will be 35% for MWA (as shown in Table 3-6 of JBWD’s 2010 
UWMP) and after 2022, JBWD supply assumed to be from MWA imported water supply of 1,959 afy to the 
Morongo Basin Pipeline. 

(d) Demands are assumed to increase by 10% during dry years. 2010 demands and supply are from actual 
data. The demands are the same with and without conservation because no conservation is required to 
meet the SBX7-7 requirements. 

Page 59 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 7-3 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

The JBWD has developed a four-stage plan as detailed in their 2005 UWMP, for responding to 
water shortages. The Water Shortage Plan includes voluntary and mandatory stages to address 
a reduction in water supply that exceeds 60 percent (Appendix D). Prohibitions, penalties and 
financial impacts of shortages have been developed by JBWD and are summarized in Chapter 
8 of their 2010 UWMP. 

This WSA demonstrates that with development of the resources identified that there will be 
sufficient water supplies over a 25-year planning horizon to meet the projected demand of the 
proposed Project and the existing and other planned development projects within the District.

Page 60 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 8-1 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Section 8: List of Abbreviations and Acronyms 

The following abbreviations and acronyms are used in this report. 

af     acre-feet 
afy     acre-feet per year 
AWAC Alliance for Water Awareness and Conservation 
AWWA American Water Works Association 
CII Commercial Industrial and Institutional 
CIMIS California Irrigation Management Information System 
County    San Bernardino County 
CUWCC California Urban Water Conservation Council 
District, JBWD Joshua Basin Water District 
DMM Demand Management Measures 
DWR California Department of Water Resources 
gpcd gallons per capita per day 
gpd gallons per day 
gpm gallons per minute 
HDWD Hi-Desert Water District 
HECW high efficiency clothes washers 
HET high efficiency toilet 
IDM Improvement District Morongo 
JBWD, District Joshua Basin Water District 
LAFCO San Bernardino Local Agency Formation Commission 
kW kilowatt 
M&I Municipal and Industrial 
MBP Morongo Basin Pipeline 
MCL’s Maximum Contaminant Levels 
mgd million gallons per day 
MWA Mojave Water Agency 
Project Cascade Solar Project 
RC resource conservation 
RL rural living 
RS single residential 
SB Senate Bill 
SBX7-7 Senate Bill 7 of Special Extended Session 7 
SCAG Southern California Association of Governments 
SWP State Water Project 
UWMP Urban Water Management Plan 
WAAP Water Account Assistance Program 
WC water conservation 

Page 61 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project Page 8-2 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

WCIP Water Conservation Incentive Program 
WIRP Water Infrastructure Restoration Program 
WSA Water Supply Assessment 
 

Page 62 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project A-1 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Appendix A: Cascade Solar Project Location Map 

Page 63 of 114



STATE  HWY

FOURTH  ST

SUN FLOWER  RD

TWO MILE  RD

29 PALMS  HWY

THIRD  ST

SUN MESA  RD

SU
N

 R
AY

  R
D

SUN WAY  RD

LA
FE

R
N

EY
  A

VE

H
O

LL
IN

G
ER

  A
VE

LA
 F

ER
N

EY
  A

VE

GOLD NUGGET  RD

FL
A

M
IN

G
O

  A
VE

FR
A

N
 L

O
U

  L
N

LA BRISA  DR

SU
N

EV
ER

  R
D

VERBENA  RD

SU
N

EV
ER

  A
VE

SU
N

 G
O

LD
  A

VE

WALPI  DR

CACTUS  DR

C
O

U
N

TY
  R

D

SUNFAIR  RD

SU
N

K
IS

T 
 R

D

BROAD  WAY
SUN ORO  RD

A
R

IZ
O

N
A 

 A
VE

SU
N

N
F A

IR
  R

D

SU
N

 K
IS

T 
 A

VE

SU
N

 L
O

M
A 

 A
VE

CIELITO  DR

D
EL

AW
A

R
E 

 A
VE

LA
W

R
EN

C
E 

 A
VE

M
T 

SH
A

ST
A 

 A
VE

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
  A

VE

SU
N

 B
EA

M
  A

VE

SUNNY SANDS  DR

COTTONWOOD  DR

CYPRESS  AVE
JO

 W
IL

LI
A

M
S 

 R
D

CANTERBURY  ST

CARMEL  ST

COBALT  RD

SUNWAY  RD

BOARD  WAY

SU
N

VI
EW

  R
D

SU
N

 F
A

IR
  R

D

PE
LI

C
A

N
  A

VE

CHOLLITA  RD

CHICASAW  RD

SECOND  ST

INDIAN  TRL

SUNFLOWER  RD

ABERDEEN  DR

STATE  HWY

ABERDEEN  DR

WALPI  DR

COBALT  RD

SU
N

EV
ER

  R
D

FL
A

M
IN

G
O

  A
VE

GOLD NUGGET  RD

C
O

U
N

TY
  R

D

SU
N

FA
IR

  R
D

Legend
JBWD District Map 1-5-2010.dwg Polyline
Layer

PIPE

TANK

VALVE

VALVE-LAT

WATER

SolarProject

Pressure Zones
PZ

A1

A2

B1

B2

C

D1

D2

D3

E1

E2

F

G

H

I

J

K

None

Outside

Page 64 of 114

VanessaP
Stamp

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text
Joshua Basin Water District

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text
Cascade Solar Project WSA

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text
Cascade Solar Project        Location Map

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text
Appendix A

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text

VanessaP
Typewritten Text



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project B-1 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Appendix B: MWA’s SWP IDM Continued Supply Letter to 
JBWD 

Page 65 of 114



Pxiw 4 AllDteeVdk~. W - a  9- . . 
... 

Phone (760) 946-7000 + Fax (760) 240-2642 + www.mojavewater.org 

Mojave 
Water 

Agency 

April 7, 201 1 

Ms. Mary Lou Cotton 
Senior Water Resources Manager 
KennedyIJenks Consultants 
2775 Ventura Road, Suite 100 
Oxnard, CA 93036 

Re: State Water Project water supply availability to IDM Participants beyond the 
year 2022 

Dear Ms. Cotton: 

We have received a request by you to provide information on water supply availability 
from the Morongo Basin Pipeline to MWA customers in Improvement District Morongo 
(IDM) beyond the term of the IDM Participants Agreement ("IDM Agreement"). 

The IDM Agreement allocates one-seventh of 50,800 acre-feet (af) of MWA's State 
Water Project (SWP) Table A water to the IDM participants, or a maximum of 7,257 af 
per year, subject to annual allocations from the Department of Water Resources (DWR). 
The 2009 State Water Project Delivery Reliability Report indicates that the long-term 
average water supply reliability for SWP contractors is anticipated to be 60% of the total 
Table A amounts through the year 2035. Under the IDM Agreement allocation 
methodology described above, a 60% SWP allocation would result in a minimum supply 
of 4,354 af total to IDM customers. 

However, in the past several years (during the low SWP allocations), MWA has been 
allocating the limited SWP supplies to all MWA customers on the basis of a percentage 
of previous years' demands. In the case of High Desert Water District (the sole current 
IDM participant capable of taking SWP water) deliveries made by MWA have been 
greater than the contractual delivery requirements pursuant to the IDM agreement. In 
the foreseeable future, MWA will continue this practice whenever possible but will still 
honor its minimum contractual obligations defined in the IDM Agreement. 

The term of the IDM Agreement will continue until the year 2022 or until all bonds 
issued on the project have been retired. After the IDM Agreement has expired, MWA 
will allocate SWP water to meet customer demands in the IDM area in a manner 

Page 66 of 114



consistent with its universally applied SWP allocation policies. It is reasonable to 
assume that policies will be similar to the allocation methods MWA has used during the 
last few years (i.e. shortages will be shared by all MWA customers during dry periods 
and SWP supplies allocated according to customers' proportionate share of historic 
deliveries) 

As you are aware, MWA has done extensive research and analysis in preparation of 
regional water demand projections for its 2010 Urban Water Management Plan 
(UWMP), and has collaborated with the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) to the 
MWA and its participants, including participants in the IDM Agreement, throughout the 
development of the projections. Draft regional projections indicate that total water 
supplies available to MWA, including local supplies and imported supplies from the 
SWP, will be sufficient to meet total water demands beyond the year 2035. A draft of 
the UWMP is currently available for review. 

Based upon the projections prepared for MWA's Draft 201 0 UWMP, it is anticipated that 
SWP supplies available to MWA will be sufficient to meet customer demands for 
imported water supplies through the year 2035, if local groundwater storage programs 
are used to buffer against short-term reductions or disruptions in supply. 

I hope that this letter is sufficient for the information you need 

~ i r b ~  Brill I 
General Manager 

Cc: Ed Muzik, Hi-Desert Water District 
Joe Guzzetta, Joshua Basin Water District 
Sandra Carlson, KennedyIJenks Consultants 

Page 67 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project C-1 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Appendix C: References 

California State Senate, 2002. Senate Bill 610. 
 
California State Senate, 2010. SBX7-7 (Steinberg). 
 
California Water Code Sections 10631, 10657, 10910, 10911, 10912, and 10915. 
 
Joshua Basin Water District (JBWD), 1996. Groundwater Management Plan, Joshua Tree, CA.  
Prepared by Krieger & Stewart, Inc., 1996. 
 
JBWD, 2004. Water Master Plan, Joshua Tree, CA. October 2002. 
 
JBWD, 2006. Groundwater Availability Evaluation, Joshua Tree, CA.  Prepared by Dudek, 2006. 
 
JBWD, 2006. Wastewater Feasibility Study, Joshua Tree, CA.  Prepared by Dudek, 2006. 
 
JBWD, 2009. 2005 Urban Water Management Plan, Joshua Tree, CA. 2005. 
 
JBWD, 2009. Draft Environmental Impact Report for the JBWD Recharge Basin and Pipeline 
Project, Joshua Tree, CA.  Prepared by ESA, May 2009. 
 
JBWD, 2009. Final Environmental Impact Report for the JBWD Recharge Basin and Pipeline 
Project, Joshua Tree, CA.  Prepared by ESA, September 2009. 
 
JBWD, 2011. 2010 Draft Urban Water Management Plan, Joshua Tree, CA. Prepared by 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. April. 
 
Mojave Water Agency (MWA), 2000. Watermaster Consumptive Use Study and Update of 
Production Safe Yield Calculations for the Mojave Basin Area. Prepared by Webb Associates. 
 
MWA, 2004. 2004 Regional Water Management Plan. Mojave Water Agency, Apple 
Valley, CA. Prepared by Schlumberger Water Services, Apple Valley, CA. 
 
MWA, 2011. 2010 Draft Urban Water Management Plan, Apple Valley, CA. Prepared by 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. April. 
 
Nishikawa, T., Izbicki, J.A., Hevesi, J.A., Stamos, C.L., and Martin, P., 2004. Evaluation Of 
Geohydrologic Framework, Recharge Estimates, And Ground- Water Flow Of The 
Joshua Tree Area, San Bernardino County, California: U.S. Geological Survey Scientific 
lnvestigations Report 2004-5267, 115 p. 
 
Office of Administrative Law, 2005. California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 22. CA  
Office of Administrative Law, Sacramento, CA. 
 
San Bernardino Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO), 2011. Agenda Item #8: Service 
Reviews for the Joshua Tree Community, January 10, 2011.

Page 68 of 114



 

FINAL – Joshua Basin Water District, Water Supply Assessment – May 2011 
Cascade Solar Project D-1 
c:\documents and settings\sandrac\my documents\uwmp\1189017 wsa cascade\final wsa\cascade_wsa_final_51311.doc 

Appendix D: JBWD Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

 

Page 69 of 114



Page 70 of 114



Page 71 of 114



Page 72 of 114



Page 73 of 114



Page 74 of 114



Page 75 of 114



Page 76 of 114



Page 77 of 114



Page 78 of 114



Page 79 of 114



Page 80 of 114



Page 81 of 114



Page 82 of 114



Page 83 of 114



Page 84 of 114



Page 85 of 114



Page 86 of 114



Page 87 of 114



Page 88 of 114



Page 89 of 114



Page 90 of 114



Page 91 of 114



Page 92 of 114



Page 93 of 114



Page 94 of 114



Page 95 of 114



Page 96 of 114



Page 97 of 114



Page 98 of 114



Page 99 of 114



Page 100 of 114



Page 101 of 114



Page 102 of 114



Page 103 of 114



Page 104 of 114



Page 105 of 114



Page 106 of 114



Page 107 of 114



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA SHEET 

 
 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors       June 1, 2011 
 
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
From:  Vice President Reynolds and Director Long, ad hoc committee members  
 
TOPIC: POLICY REGARDING CAPACITY ALLOCATION IN THE MORONGO 

PIPELINE AFTER THE YEAR 2022 
 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Board approve the following three alternative policy positions 
in determining future allocation of capacity in the Morongo Pipeline: 

1) Allocation of capacity in the Morongo Pipeline will  be based on 
the current allocation initially, but adjusted every 5 to 10 years 
in conjunction with the updating of the Urban Water 
Management Plan 

2) Allocation of capacity  in the pipeline will be guaranteed 
permanently to Morongo Basin agencies collectively but not 
allocated to individual agencies.  The Morongo Basin agencies 
would split the allocation in the future. 

3) Future allocation of capacity will be determined by Mojave Water 
Agency (MWA) since that agency would control the allocation of 
“water”  to the Morongo Basin.   

 
ANALYSIS: This ad hoc committee was formed to propose a JBWD policy on 

extending the current allocation formula for capacity in the Morongo 
Pipeline after 2022. 
 
The current agreement with Mojave Water Agency (MWA) allocates 
7,257 acre feet (af) of water through the pipeline as follows until the 
year 2022: 

27% Joshua Basin Water District 
59% Hi Desert Water District 
  9% Bighorn Desert View Water Agency 
  1% County of San Bernardino Zone w-4 
  4% County of San Bernardino  Zone w-1 (later sold to MWA) 

 
The actual “entitlement” is based on the percentage of the 7,257af that 
the State Water Project (SWP) delivers.  For example, this year the 
SWP delivered 80% of total allocation, so the allocation this year would 
be applied to 5,805 acre feet. 
 
The Morongo Basin agencies are the only agencies within the MWA to 
have an “entitlement” which we understand was a condition required 
for the Morongo Pipeline bonds to be sold.  The agreement with MWA 

Page 108 of 114



terminates in 2022 at the time that the bonds are paid off.  After that 
time water would be allocated to the Morongo Basin agencies in the 
same manner as all other water districts within the MWA area.  In 
doing so, MWA considers the needs of all agencies within its jurisdiction 
and allocates water based on needs. 
 
It has been proposed by some other agencies that the Morongo Basin 
seek to have the current allocation formula extended beyond 2022.  
MWA has made it clear that it would not agree to continue providing an 
“entitlement” to water.  It subsequently has been proposed that 
Morongo Basin agencies     be permanently guaranteed an allocation of 
“pipeline capacity”  instead of allocation of water.  Pipeline “capacity” 
refers to the use of the pipeline rather than the delivery of water itself. 
 
 
 
The JBWD ad hoc committee opposes a permanent allocation to each 
agency based on the current allocation formula.  The future is 
uncertain and there should be flexibility to address future water needs.  
Since the Morongo Basin is reliant on MWA to provide the water, we 
see no benefit in fixing the capacity in an amount that may differ from 
the future water allocation.  However, for planning purposes, the ad 
hoc Committee proposes that if there is going to be any capacity 
allocation it should be adjusted every 5 to 10 years to coincide with the 
Urban Water Management Plans. 
 
Alternatively, MWA could guarantee the entire capacity to the Morongo 
Basin agencies and those agencies could allocate the capacity.  This 
would protect against the MWA allocating capacity to agencies outside 
of the Morongo Basin (e.g. Coachella Valley water agencies), a concern 
that was raised. 
 
We still do not know whether or not MWA will entertain any capacity 
allocation restriction beyond 2022, so this entire exercise may be moot.  
If MWA does not agree, then they would allocate water and capacity to 
Morongo Basin in the same way as it is now allocated to the Victor 
Valley and other areas.  The ad hoc Committee does not object to this 
method since the capacity would be of little value without the water.  
Insisting on capacity for the Morongo Basin also raises the question of 
whether or not the Morongo Basin should be responsible for 
maintenance and replacement of the pipeline, costs that are now 
incurred by MWA. 
 
The District needs a policy for discussion purposes.  The recommended 
positions would give JBWD the best protection for a long term source 
of water.                                                                                                                         

  
 

Page 109 of 114



Updated    5/25/2011                  Page 1 

Project Priority List 
 

PROJECTS NEARING COMPLETION 
 Update Urban Water Management Plan (Joe Guzzetta – Year 1) 

Contract was awarded to Kennedy Jenks at the August 4
th

 2010 Board meeting. State law 

requires this update to be completed by July 1, 2011.  The draft is complete and being 

circulated for CAC meeting on May 25
th

 and Board Public Hearing on June 15
th

. 

Personnel Policy Manual (Joe Guzzetta) 

This will be considered during labor negotiations this year. 
 

PROJECTS UNDERWAY 
Election to Charge Private Wells for Replacement Water 

Attorney is reviewing election options. 

Property Acquisition for Future Water Facilities (Joe Guzzetta – Year 1) 

The Master Plan identifies 27 to 37 million gallons of additional reservoir storage that will be needed 

to operate the District in the future.  Staff proposes to begin acquiring the land before the most ideal 

parcels are developed, especially for reservoirs which are constrained by altitude, proximity to the 

existing system, and other considerations. Potential sites are under evaluation. .  The Board has 

authorized staff to prioritize the proposed sites and receive some preliminary information from CE 

Prime to consider phasing the acquisition of the parcels. 

Recharge Basin & Pipeline Project  (Joe Guzzetta) 
Property has been purchased.  Monitoring well has been installed. Final design contract was awarded 

to Krieger & Stewart Engineers at August 4
th

 Board meeting and is about 70% complete. Construction 

is contingent on Proposition 84 and other funding. 

Final Phase of 4” Pipe Replacement  (Director Luhrs, Director Wilson, Joe Guzzetta) 

Priorities have been established. 15,000’ of pipeline has been designed with 60,000’ yet to be 

designed.  Completion design and construction of this project is pending a financial strategy to be 

considered by the Board. Referred to Board Committee (Luhrs/Wilson) at the January 19, 2011  

Regular Board Meeting. The Committee has recommended installing 15,000 feet of pipe and is now 

considering funding. 

Record Archival System  (Susan Greer – Year 1) 

Staff had second presentation. This will eventually enable the District to maintain more electronic files 

for easier access and less physical storage. 

Hauling Station Coin/Card Reader – Under Study (Jim Corbin – Year 1) 

Staff is considering a system to enable selling of water at the hauling station.  

 

PROJECTS COMPLETED 
Field Laptop Computers (Keith Faul – Year 1) 

Laptops are installed 

Well #16   (Randy Little)   

The well has been completed and is permitted by Department of Health Services. 

Hot Master + Backup Computer – SCADA (Randy Little – Year 1) 

Complete. This computer provides backup to the Telemetry System.   

LAFCO Mandatory Municipal Services Review (Joe Guzzetta – Year 1) 

State law requires LAFCO to conduct a review of each agency’s boundaries and services (at agency 

cost) to determine the appropriateness and to recommend any changes. LAFCO will conduct a hearing 

on January 19. 

 

Page 110 of 114



Updated    5/25/2011                  Page 2 

PROJECTS NOT BEGUN:  YEAR 1 
Develop/Update Board Policies and Procedures (Susan Greer) 

Update 3030 Plan (Joe Guzzetta) 

Staff intends to solicit proposals for this project. 

Fire Cabinet for Maps (Keith Faul – Year 1) 

Custom Software Programming  (Susan Greer/Keith Faul – Year 1) 

Staff is re-assessing this issue and considering whether modifications to the existing software or an 

upgrade to the Version X software which adds the lacking features plus more is a better alternative. 

Conduct Fee Study/Update Rate Study (Susan Greer – Year 1)  

Miscellaneous fees are being developed based upon resources used; staff, vehicle, equipment, etc.  

A rate study update will determine what rate changes are needed in the next several years to maintain  

services. A proposal is under consideration by the Board. 

GIS Server for Field Login (Keith Faul – Year 1) 

Field crew will receive laptop computers to be used in the field for more accuracy and efficiency.  This 

server is needed in order to connect to the GIS system. 

Storage Bays for Rock, Sand, Asphalt (Jim Corbin – Year 1) 

This will allow for more orderly storage of rock, sand, and asphalt which are used regularly in normal 

district operations. 

Pressure Reducing Station Replace/Refurbishment (Randy Little – Years 1-2) 

Assess and overhaul or replace PRV/PSV/Altitude valve over a three year period.  Twelve in use, one 

completed.   

 

PROJECTS NOT BEGUN:  YEAR 2 
Carpet for Office (Terry Spurrier – Year 2) 

D31 New Booster Pumps and Housing (Randy Little – Year 2) 

The pumps at this booster station operate at a low efficiency rate such that it is timely to replace them. 

Chlorine Analyzers With Telemetry Programming (Randy Little – Year 2) 

Install analyzers to monitor chlorine residual at up to four remote sites. 

Flow Meter Refurbishment (Randy Little – Year 2) 

Four remaining flow meters (2 this year) with digital displays and telemetry plus DTS programming. 

Asphalt Installation Equipment – Under Study (Jim Corbin – Year 2) 

Altitude Valves at C2B, SCADA Electric Controls C1 and C3 Tanks (Randy Little – Year 2) 

These valves will prevent the overflowing of the C Zone tanks. 

Space Needs Assessment for Office Building Addition (Joe Guzzetta – Year 2 (per Board deferral) 

A needs assessment will determine how much space the District needs for an Emergency Operations 

Center in order to apply for grant construction funds. This item was discussed at the August 4, 2010 

Board meeting, and deferred. 

Relocate C2 Tank & J Booster (Randy Little – Years 2-3) 

This project has been designed and would relocate a 500,000 gallon tank from the C Zone where it is 

no longer needed to the H Zone where it is severely needed.  The project was deferred pending 

funding. 

System Reliability Upgrade for Hospital and County Complex; C, B and D3 zones (Jim Corbin – 

Years 2-3) 

This entire area has one single water supply feed.  It does not have a redundant water supply for 

emergency situations.  Staff has proposed a secondary “emergency” source. 

 

 

 

Page 111 of 114



Updated    5/25/2011                  Page 3 

PROJECTS NOT BEGUN:  YEAR 3 
Security (Motion Sensors) at Shop and Well 10 (Randy Little – Year 3) 

This would provide security to an expanded area at the shop.   

 

 

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PROJECTS:  (Postponed to determine funding 

potential) 
Well 10 and 14 Soft Start Bypass – Generator Controls  (Randy Little – Year 1)  

The new 600 KW generators need this equipment in order to operate properly at the two largest 

producing wells. 

Earthquake Shutoff Valves for Three Tanks (Randy Little – Year 1) 

Currently, if a pipe from a reservoir is broken the entire reservoir can be drained unless a valve is 

manually located and shut off. This will provide automatic shutoff in case of earthquake to the two 

major C tanks and the B tank serving the hospital. 

Transfer Switches at Remaining Booster Sites (Randy Little – Year 1) 

The switches are needed in order to be able to use the emergency generators at the pump stations. 

Large Meter Bypasses (Jim Corbin – Year 1) 

Currently, in order to test or remove a large meter, the service needs to be disconnected.  This is a 

serious problem for some large meters such as the hospital.  The bypass will allow the meter to be 

removed and replaced without discontinuing service. 

Emergency Supplies (Rick Cook – Years 1-2) 

These include food, water, cots, etc. for serious emergencies for employees. 

 

Page 112 of 114



Page 113 of 114



Page 114 of 114




